
 
NOVATO SANITARY DISTRICT 

 
March 22, 2010 

 
A regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the Novato Sanitary District will be held at 
6:30 p.m., Monday, March 22, 2010, at the District Office, 500 Davidson Street, Novato. 
 

 
AGENDA 

1. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 

2. AGENDA APPROVAL: 

3. PUBLIC COMMENT (Please observe a three-minute time limit): 
 

 This item is to allow anyone present to comment on any subject not on the agenda, 
or to request consideration to place an item on a future agenda.  Individuals will be 
limited to a three-minute presentation.  No action will be taken by the Board at this 
time as a result of any public comments made. 

4. BOARD MEMBER REPORTS: 

5. REVIEW OF MINUTES: 
 
a. Consider approval of minutes of the January 11th and 25th, 2010 meetings.  

6. CONSENT CALENDAR: 

a. Approve payment to the County of Marin in the amount of $26,000.00 for 
encroachment permit fees.  

b. Approval of disbursements.   

7. SOLID WASTE: 

a. Receive report on Pilot Food Waste Composting program. 

8. ELECTION CONTEST:  
 
 a. Report on election contest.  

9. ADMINISTRATIVE: 

a. Consider adoption of revised 2009-10 annual District budget. 
b. Consider approval of budget adoption schedule for 2010-11 fiscal year. 
c. Consider approval of Policy 5060 on minutes. 



AGENDA/Board of Directors 
March 22, 2010 
 

s:\board agenda\2010\march\32210.doc 2

10. WASTEWATER OPERATIONS: 

a. Wastewater Operations Committee report 
b. Consider approval of an amendment to Agreement for Emergency Consulting 

Services. 

11. REPORTS: 

a. North Bay Water Reuse Authority. 
b. ISO 14001: Environmental Management System training 
c. NPDES Tentative Order 

12. MANAGER’S REPORT: 

12. ADJOURNMENT: 
 
 
 
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special 
assistance to participate in this meeting, please contact the District at (415) 892-
1694 at least 24 hours prior to the meeting.  Notification prior to the meeting will 
enable the District to make reasonable accommodation to help ensure accessibility 
to this meeting. 
 
 
 
Next Resolution No.  3022 
 
 
 



 
January 11, 2010 

 
A regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the Novato Sanitary District was held at 
6:30 p.m., Monday, January 11, 2010, preceded by a closed session beginning at 5:00 
p.m. at the District offices, 500 Davidson Street, Novato. 
 
At 5:10 p.m. President Di Giorgio announced the Board would meet in closed session to 
discuss the following matters on the Closed Session Agenda.   

CLOSED SESSION CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – INITIATION OF 
LITIGATION – ONE POTENTIAL CASE: 
 
Initiation of litigation pursuant to Subsection (c) of Government Code Section 54956.9. 
 
CLOSED SESSION CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING 
LITIGATION: 
 
Existing litigation pursuant to Subsection (a) of Government Code Section 54956.9, 
Suzan Sharpley, Robert Abeling vs. William Long, Novato Sanitary District, Elaine 
Ginnold, Marin County Registrar of Voters. 
 
BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT FOR CLOSED SESSIONS:  President Michael Di 
Giorgio, Members James  D. Fritz, William C. Long, George C. Quesada and Dennis 
Welsh.   
 
STAFF PRESENT FOR CLOSED SESSIONS:  Manager-Engineer Beverly B. James, 
Deputy Manager-Engineer Sandeep Karkal, and District Counsel Kent Alm.  Sky 
Woodruff, Principal, Meyers Nave, was present via phone. 
 
The closed Sessions ended at 6:33 p.m. 
 
Open session began at 6:40 p.m. 
 
BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT:  President Michael Di Giorgio, Members James D. 
Fritz, William C. Long, George C. Quesada and Dennis Welsh.   
 
STAFF PRESENT:  Manager-Engineer Beverly James, Deputy Manager-Engineer 
Sandeep Karkal, Administrative Secretary Julie Borda, and District Counsel Kent Alm. 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Colleen Rose, Novato resident 
 Dennis Welsh, Petaluma 
 Dean L. Heffelfinger, Novato resident 
 Pam Welsh, Novato resident 
 Brant Miller, Novato resident 
 Phil Tucker, CA Healthy Communities Network 
 Bill Scott, Novato resident 
  
 



January 11, 2010 
Page 2 

 
 Suzanne Brown Crow, Novato resident 
 Norman Stone, Novato resident 
 Jack Kaplan, Novato resident 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 
 
AGENDA APPROVAL:   
 
On motion of Member Quesada, seconded by Member Fritz, and carried unanimously, 
the Agenda was approved as mailed. 
 
FIRST CLOSED SESSION REPORT:   District Counsel Kent Alm reported that the 
Board authorized the law firm of Meyers Nave to initiate litigation against Bank of Marin 
with regards to the electronic transfer losses in 2009.  He stated this litigation would 
begin within the next several weeks. 
 
SECOND CLOSED SESSION REPORT:  District Counsel Kent Alm reported that 
instruction was given to District Counsel in regards to handling the matter of existing 
litigation:  Suzan Sharpley, Robert Abeling vs William Long, Elaine Ginnold. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT:   None. 
 
BOARD MEMBER REPORTS:   
 
President Di Giorgio stated he was not pleased with the letter authored by Director 
Welsh (letter to Patrick Faulkner, County Counsel, dated January 6, 2010) which was sent to 
the Board members and the Press.  He felt the letter belittles the integrity of the Board 
and that of District Counsel. 
 
Member Welsh responded that he has agreed to participate in Brown Act training as 
soon as on-line training is available.  He discussed his participation as a witness in the 
EPA matter in April 2009. 
 
President Di Giorgio and District Counsel Kent Alm discussed the appropriateness of 
Director Welsh’s participation in closed session meetings which involve discussion of 
the EPA incident with the District’s hired law firm of Barg Coffin Lewis and Trapp.  Mr. 
Alm stated that the matter needs to be resolved prior to any further closed session 
meetings and that he would prepare a legal opinion regarding this matter. 
 
Member Long discussed the letter from Director Welsh stating it was defamatory.  He 
requested Director Welsh revise the letter and publicly circulate it to all parties it was 
originally sent to. 
 
Member Welsh read a letter he wrote to the Board, dated January 11, 2010, objecting to 
the Emergency Services Agreement with Veolia and the hiring of temporary employees 
from Aerotek. 



January 11, 2010 
Page 3 

 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR:   
 
On motion of Member Quesada, seconded by Member Long, and carried unanimously, 
the following consent calendar items were approved: 
 

a. Approval of a contract amendment with Olin Chlor Alkali Products, Olin 
Corporation to supply 12.5% liquid sodium hypochlorite. 

b. Approval of a contract with Brentagg Pacific, Inc. to supply 25% liquid sodium 
bisulfite. 

c. Approval of regular disbursements in the amount of $519,631.04, upgrade 
project disbursements in the amount of $1,868,414.89, and Board member 
disbursements in the amount of $4,232.69. 

 
Suzanne Brown Crow, Novato resident, commented on the check to Barg, Coffin, Lewis 
and Trapp and requested a copy of the total amount spent on attorney fees in relation to 
the EPA matter. 
 
Norm Stone, Novato resident, questioned the initiation of litigation against Bank of Marin 
as discussed in closed session.  Mr. Alm replied that he would be available to speak to 
Mr. Stone after the Board meeting however, he could not discuss details disclosed in 
the closed session meeting. 
 
PUMP STATION REHABILITATION:  PROJECT 72403: 
 
Consider approval of a contract with The Covello Group for construction management 
services.  The Manager stated that the Rush Creek and Deer Island Pump Station 
Rehabilitation Project has been awarded, and it is expected that the remaining three 
design stages constituting the remaining eleven pump stations will begin construction 
within the next few months.  She stated the total estimated construction value of the 
projects is currently about $5.04 million.  She noted that The Covello Group is currently 
providing construction management services for the treatment plant upgrade project 
and the collection system improvements.  She stated staff has requested a proposal 
from The Covello Group to provide construction management services on all the four 
stages of the pump station upgrade project and has negotiated a not-to-exceed fee on a 
time-and-materials basis of $540,589.   
 
Director Welsh stated his opposition to this request because he believes the District’s 
Field Services Superintendent and Staff Inspector should be able to complete the 
construction management services for all or part of this project.   
 
The Manager stated that the Inspector and Field Services Superintendent are actively 
involved with other projects.  In addition, she stated the management expertise needed 
for this project exceeds the District’s knowledge. 
 



January 11, 2010 
Page 4 

 
Member Quesada commended The Covello Group’s past work with the District, noting 
their management expertise and ability to keep change orders to a minimum.   
 
 
On motion on Member Fritz, seconded by Member Long and carried with the following 
vote, the Board approved a contract in an not-to-exceed amount of $541,000 with The 
Covello Group for construction management services on a time and materials basis.   
Ayes:  Di Giorgio, Fritz, Long, Quesada.  Noes:  Welsh. 
 
LITIGATION: 
 
Consider authorization to provide legal counsel for Director Long for case number 
CIV096368.   
 
Member Long recused himself at 7:15 p.m.  
 
District Counsel Kent Alm gave an overview of the existing litigation as discussed in the 
second closed session:  Existing litigation pursuant to Subsection (a) of Government 
Code Section 54956.9, Suzan Sharpley, Robert Abeling vs William Long, Novato 
Sanitary District, Elaine Ginnold, Marin County Registrar of Voters.  He discussed the 
reasons he does not recommend the District provide legal defense for Director Long in 
the above mentioned matter.  He stated there is no specific provision dealing with 
Special District Board member legal representation.  He noted that he has discussed 
this issue with Director Long.   
 
Member Fritz stated he feels it is unfair that Director Long be expected to bear the legal 
costs in this matter.  He believes Director Long should be represented. 
 
President Di Giorgio commented on the matter and stated he feels Member Long 
should receive legal representation in this matter. 
 
Member Quesada discussed the thirty-one parcels that did not receive a ballot which 
allowed them to vote for the Novato Sanitary District Board of Directors.  He stated he 
felt it was an error by the County Registrar of Voters and suggested the County contact 
the disenfranchised parcels and allow them to cast a vote at this time.  He believes 
Member Long should receive legal representation in this matter. 
 
Member Welsh discussed the matter, stating it has not been determined who is at fault 
regarding the thirty-one parcels.  He stated he supports legal representation for Member 
Long in this matter. 
 
District Counsel Kent Alm discussed the pending litigation stating that if Member Long 
did not reply to the lawsuit, one would assume the plaintiffs would prevail without any 
further action.  He stated that the District is named in the lawsuit as well, and will 
respond because they have a substantial stake in determining what the issues are in 
terms of whether the correct boundaries were provided.  He discussed the arguments in 



January 11, 2010 
Page 5 

 
favor of, and, in opposition to, providing Board Member Long with legal defense in the 
pending litigation.   
 
Bill Scott, Novato resident, stated he supports the Board’s legal representation of 
Member Long in this matter. 
 
Norm Stone, Novato resident, stated he agrees with the defense of Member Long if the 
District uses the same counsel to represent Member Long and the District in this matter. 
 
Jack Kaplan, Novato resident, stated his concern with the precedent the Board is setting 
in this matter by offering legal defense to Member Long.  He discussed Veolia’s 
campaign support and the potential conflict of interest. 
 
Brant Miller, Novato resident, stated he sees no conflict of interest in the District 
defending Member Long and stated he supports the Board representing Member Long’s 
defense. 
 
On motion of Member Fritz, seconded by Member Quesada and carried with the 
following votes, the Board authorized the provision of legal representation for Director 
Long for case number CIV096368.  Ayes:  Di Giorgio, Fritz, Quesada, Welsh.  Abstain:  
Long due to his absence from the meeting at this time. 
 
MANAGER’S ANNOUNCEMENTS: 
 
The Manager pointed out that the November 9th and November 23rd, 2009, minutes 
were provided in the Board packet but were not placed on the Agenda.  For this reason, 
the minutes were unable to be approved at this meeting.  She stated the minutes would 
be included as an agenda item at the next Board meeting. 
 
ADJOURNMENT:  There being no further business to come before the Board, President 
Di Giorgio adjourned the meeting at 7:49 p.m.  
 
 
          Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
          Beverly B. James 
          Secretary 
 
Julie Borda, Recording 



 
January 25, 2010 

 
A regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the Novato Sanitary District was held at 
6:30 p.m., Monday, January 25, 2010, preceded by a closed session beginning at 6:00 
p.m. at the District offices, 500 Davidson Street, Novato. 
 
At 6:03 p.m. President Di Giorgio announced the Board would meet in closed session to 
discuss the following matter on the Closed Session Agenda.   
 
CLOSED SESSION CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING 
LITIGATION: 
 
Existing litigation pursuant to Subsection (a) of Government Code Section 54956.9, 
Suzan Sharpley, Robert Abeling vs. William Long, Novato Sanitary District, Elaine 
Ginnold, Marin County Registrar of Voters. 
 
BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT FOR CLOSED SESSIONS:  President Michael Di 
Giorgio, Members James  D. Fritz, William C. Long, George C. Quesada and Dennis 
Welsh.   
 
STAFF PRESENT FOR CLOSED SESSIONS:  Manager-Engineer Beverly B. James 
and District Counsel Kent Alm. 
 
The closed Session ended at 6:30 p.m. 
 
Open session began at 6:35 p.m. 
 
BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT:  President Michael Di Giorgio, Members James D. 
Fritz, William C. Long, George C. Quesada and Dennis Welsh.   
 
STAFF PRESENT:  Manager-Engineer Beverly James, Administrative Secretary Julie 
Borda, and District Counsel Kent Alm.  Deputy Manager-Engineer Sandeep Karkal 
arrived at 7:10 p.m. 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Deanna Pierce, Novato resident 
 Tom Pierce, Novato resident 
 Dennis Welsh, Petaluma 
 Jo Heffelfinger, Novato resident 
 Pam Welsh, Novato resident 
 Brant Miller, Novato resident 
 Phil Tucker, CA Healthy Communities Network 
 Dennis Fishwick, Novato resident 
 Norm Stone, Novato resident 
 John Bailey, Veolia Water 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 
 
AGENDA APPROVAL:   



January 25, 2010 
Page 2 

 
 
On motion of Member Quesada, seconded by Member Fritz, and carried unanimously, 
the Agenda was approved as mailed. 
 
CLOSED SESSION REPORT:   District Counsel Kent Alm reported that the hearing for 
this closed session item has been set for February 22nd.   
 
PUBLIC COMMENT:   None. 
 
BOARD MEMBER REPORTS:   
 
Member Long thanked Member Welsh for the revision of his letter (letter to Patrick 
Faulkner, County Counsel, dated January 6, 2010).  Member Long also commented on an 
article in the Pacific Sun. 
 
Member Fritz commented on the Wastewater Operations Committee meeting and the 
ongoing construction at the treatment facility. 
 
President Di Giorgio also thanked Member Welsh for the revision of his letter and 
expressed his appreciation. 
 
REVIEW OF MINUTES: 
 
Consider approval of minutes of the November 9th, 23rd and 30th, 2009 Board meetings.  
Director Quesada requested the minutes be approved individually. 
 
On motion of Member Quesada, seconded by Member Long and carried unanimously, 
the November 9, 2009 Board meeting minutes were approved. 
 
Member Quesada questioned the formation of the Ad-hoc Referendum Preparation 
Committee and requested the committee be changed from “Ad-hoc” to a “Standing” 
committee to facilitate public notice and public attendance. 
 
District Counsel Kent Alm suggested that if Board wished to have the meetings public, 
they could do so.  He stated there is nothing that prohibits an Ad-hoc committee from 
having public meetings or keeping minutes, but it is not required; the decision is at the 
Board’s discretion. 
 
Member Di Giorgio pointed out a change to the November 23rd meeting minutes.  He 
stated that the individuals appointed to the Ad-hoc Referendum Preparation Committee 
were himself and Member Fritz, not Member Long and Member Fritz as stated in the 
minutes.  Recording Secretary Julie Borda will review the audio tape of the minutes, 
revise the minutes as needed, and request Board approval at the next scheduled Board 
meeting. 
 



January 25, 2010 
Page 3 

 
On motion of Member Quesada, seconded by Member Long and carried unanimously, 
the November 30, 2009 Board meeting minutes were approved. 
 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR:   
 
Member Fritz pointed out an incorrect date in item b:  Meeting schedule – March 9th.  He 
noted that the correct date should be March 8th.   
 
On motion of Member Long, seconded by Member Quesada, and carried unanimously, 
the following consent calendar items were approved: 
 

a. Approval of Consent for Boundary Change and Waiver of Conducting Authority 
for Annexation of the Hamilton Pool. 

b. Approval of meeting schedule as follows:  February 8th and 22nd, March 8th and 
22nd, April 12th and 26th.   

c. Approval of regular disbursements in the amount of $501,271.43, upgrade 
project disbursements in the amount of $133,111.24, and payroll related 
disbursements in the amount of $107,577.57. 

 
WASTEWATER OPERATIONS: 
 
Committee report:  The Manager noted that the Wastewater Operations committee met 
on January 20, 2010.  She reviewed the key points of the Monthly Operations Report, 
December 2009, prepared by Veolia Water West Operating Services, Inc.  She 
discussed the January 4th low level mercury sample collected at the Ignacio site which 
was higher than any previous results for low level mercury.  She discussed the details 
involved in this sample collection episode.  She stated the results of the investigation 
were submitted to the Regional Water Quality Control Board as a preliminary 
memorandum to meet the five-day reporting requirements, and will additionally be 
submitted with the monthly Self-Monitoring Report. 
 
President Di Giorgio questioned the mercury sample collection procedure and follow-up.  
The Manager explained in detail the actions that were taken due to this result and 
stated she was unsure of what caused the anomaly.  Plant Manager, John Bailey, 
Veolia Water thoroughly discussed the collection methods required for mercury 
sampling. 
 
COLLECTION SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT 72706: 
 
Consider approval of change orders for the Railroad Avenue sewer main replacement.  
The Manager discussed the Railroad Avenue Sewer Line Project which the Board 
reviewed at their February 9, 2009 meeting.  Under this Agreement, the District agreed 
to pay half of the estimated project costs.  She noted that Signature Properties had 
incurred additional costs during the project totaling $167,873 and that the District’s 



January 25, 2010 
Page 4 

 
share of this cost (50%) would be $83,936.50.  She recommended the Board approve 
the change order.  
 
Director Welsh questioned what revenue would be generated from this project.  The 
Manager explained that 150 units would need connection permits at the current fee of 
$7,720 per connection.  She stated that in addition, each unit would be billed the annual 
sewer service charge of $462 (current annual fee for fiscal year 2009-2010). 
 
On motion on Member Quesdada, seconded by Member Fritz and carried unanimously, 
the Board approved payment to Signature Properties for change orders for the Railroad 
Avenue sewer main replacement in the amount of $83,936.50. 
 
DISTRICT COUNSEL: 
 
District Counsel update on Board Member Welsh’s letter of January 6, 2010 to Marin 
County District Attorney.    District Counsel Kent Alm referenced a letter (included in the 
Board packet) dated January 6, 2010, addressed to Edward S. Berberian, District 
Attorney, from Board Member Dennis J. Welsh.  He stated that the letter discussed the 
controversy over whether there was a conflict with Member Welsh’s attendance at a 
Closed Session meeting where matters of the pending EPA investigation were 
discussed with representatives from the law firm of Barg, Coffin, Lewis and Trapp.  He 
stated he received inquires from the District Attorney’s office and had responded with a 
written opinion which was provided to the Board members and to the District Attorney 
on January 22nd.  He stated that the Board could agendize this item at a later time after 
a response had been received from the District Attorney’s office. 
 
Norm Stone, Novato resident, asked Mr. Alm if the District would seek judicial 
intervention or name a Board member as a defendant in this matter.  Mr. Alm stated that 
no one would be named as a defendant and the Board would wait until the District 
Attorney responded on this matter. 
 
Give direction to staff and District Counsel regarding letter from Board Member Welsh of 
January 11, 2010.  District Counsel Kent Alm commented on the items Member Welsh 
brought forth in the letter and stated he was able to address the core issue of the letter.  
He stated he could secure case law and background information regarding the legal 
issue of entering into the emergency contract with Veolia Water if the Board directed 
him to do so. 
 
Member Long asked if Veolia was providing any services outside of the Emergency 
Services Contract.  The Manager responded that Veolia was only providing the services 
as outlined in the Emergency Services Contract.  District Counsel Kent Alm stated that 
his firm designed the Emergency Services Contract in a way that would be permissible 
in regards to the limitations set forth in the law. 
 
Member Welsh commented on the portion of his letter which stated there is a Veolia 
employee spending hours in the lab.  He expressed his dissatisfaction with anyone 



January 25, 2010 
Page 5 

 
other than District employees performing lab functions.  The Manager responded that 
the District does not have any Veolia employees working as lab technicians; however, 
the District is coordinating laboratory reporting with Veolia as the monthly reports are 
prepared.  She stated Veolia has provided input on the District’s data collection and the 
Lab Supervisor has expressed her appreciation for this assistance.   
 
The Board members discussed what direction Staff should take on this matter and 
Member Long responded that he felt lab operations should be left under the direction of 
the Manager-Engineer.   
 
Member Welsh made a motion to direct District Counsel to give a written opinion as to 
whether Veolia Water employees can be allowed to perform any lab operations, collect 
samples, or to perform duties that should be assigned to District employees as per the 
scope of duties outlined in the Emergency Services Agreement.  The motion died for 
lack of second. 
 
Phil Tucker, CA Healthy Communities Network, discussed Veolia’s expenditure prior to 
Veolia entering into the contract in September 2009.  He discussed the referendum’s 
certification by the Registrar of Voters and Veolia’s continued operation.  He asked if the 
Board has reviewed Veolia’s invoices in view of the fact that the referendum is pending. 
 
Dennis Fishwick, Novato resident, stated he does not feel the Manager has the 
authority to allow Veolia employees to operate in the District Lab.  He referenced the 
San Anselmo sewage treatment facility.  He stated he felt the District should remove 
Veolia and bring in the District’s employees. 
 
STRATEGIC PLAN UPDATE PROJECT 72808: 
 
Consider approval of a contract with Bartle Wells Associates to update the Revenue 
Program for an amount not to exceed $20,000.  The Manager noted that Bartle Wells 
completed an update of the District’s Revenue Program in 2005 and that it is time to 
update the program to forecast revenue and expenditures for the next five years.  She 
pointed out that the District is planning to apply for federal and state grants and state 
revolving fund loans and in order to do this, an up to date revenue program must be 
completed.  She stated she anticipates the Revenue Program will be completed in May 
2010. 
 
On motion of Member Long, seconded by Member Fritz, and carried unanimously, the 
Board approved a contract with Bartle Wells Associates to update the Revenue 
Program for an amount not to exceed $20,000. 
 
STAFF REPORTS: 
 
California Association of Sanitation Agencies (CASA) Conference.  The Manager gave 
a Power Point presentation and discussed her participation at the CASA mid-year 
conference. 



January 25, 2010 
Page 6 

 
 
Members Long, Fritz, and Di Giorgio discussed their participation at the conference,  
noting seminars on Fuel Cell research, the Delta and water legislation, and legislative 
topics that will be affecting sewer agencies in the near future. 
 
North Bay Watershed Association Conference.  The Manager noted that the North Bay 
Watershed Association will be holding their biannual conference on Friday, April 9th, in 
Petaluma.  She reminded the Board members that the early registration discount 
deadline is January 31st.  Members Di Giorgio, Welsh, Quesada, Fritz, and Long 
expressed an interest in attending.   
 
MANAGER’S ANNOUNCEMENTS:  None. 
 
ADJOURNMENT:  There being no further business to come before the Board, President 
Di Giorgio adjourned the meeting at 8:12 p.m.  
 
 
          Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
          Beverly B. James 
          Secretary 
 
Julie Borda, Recording 



NOVATO SANITARY DISTRICT 
BOARD AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 
TITLE:   Consent Calendar: 
Collection System Improvements; 
Bel Marin Keys Force Main 
Replacement Project; Project No. 
72706 

MEETING DATE:   March 22, 2010 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO.:  

RECOMMENDED ACTION:   Approve payment to the County of Marin in the amount of 
$26,000.00 for encroachment permit fees. 
SUMMARY AND DISCUSSION:   
 
At its February 22nd meeting the District Board reviewed bids received and awarded the 
contract to Team Ghilotti of Petaluma for $598,285.00.   
 
District staff has received the cost of the encroachment permit from the County of Marin 
Public Works Department in the amount of $26,000.00.  County of Marin staff calculated this 
amount by direct costs for plan checking plus the estimated time for field inspection based on 
the contract time allowed in the specifications for the contractor to complete the work. 
 
Marin County Code allows County staff to estimate fees based on 2 percent of the estimated 
cost at time of bidding for plan checking plus 3 percent of the bid cost for inspection fees.  If 
fees were charged using this formula the cost of the encroachment permit would be 
$35,862.10.  Staff recommends issuing a check to the County of Marin in the amount of 
$26,000.00 for encroachment permit fees. 
  
 
 

ALTERNATIVES:  None. 

BUDGET INFORMATION:  This work will be funded from the budget for Collection System 
Improvements, Project 72706, which has a current FY09-10 budget balance of 
$1,689,563.00. 

DEPT.MGR.: MANAGER: 

 



Date Num Name Credit

Mar 22, 10
3/22/2010 50667 Barg, Coffin, Lewis & Trapp 117,745.25
3/22/2010 50708 Meyers, Nave, Riback, Silver &... 63,207.33
3/22/2010 50683 Covello Group, The 35,799.80
3/22/2010 50740 Sideman & Bancroft, LLP 30,652.76
3/22/2010 50682 County of Marin-Permit 26,000.00
3/22/2010 50726 Sideman & Bancroft, LLP 20,318.04
3/22/2010 50703 Latham & Watkins, LLP 19,424.94
3/22/2010 50673 Brown & Caldwell, Inc. 19,392.72
3/22/2010 50717 Olin Chlor Alkali Products 12,890.02
3/22/2010 50687 EDD 9,900.00
3/22/2010 50709 North Bay Construction, Inc. 9,679.51
3/22/2010 50734 W.R. Forde 9,670.00
3/22/2010 50661 Aerotek 8,321.00
3/22/2010 50716 Oakley Water Strategies, Inc. 7,535.00
3/22/2010 50723 Rauch Communication Consult... 7,134.44
3/22/2010 50729 Swanson McNamara Haller 6,032.90
3/22/2010 50688 Edd Clark & Associates,Inc. 5,743.75
3/22/2010 50725 SFE Global Inc. 4,920.00
3/22/2010 50672 Brenntag Pacific, Inc. 4,721.18
3/22/2010 50713 North Marin Water District 3,362.70
3/22/2010 50722 R3 Consulting Group 3,250.00
3/22/2010 50692 Fort Dearborn Life Insurance 3,213.26
3/22/2010 50689 EOA, Inc. 3,061.74
3/22/2010 50663 American Express-22062 2,597.09
3/22/2010 50736 Water Components & Building 2,323.27
3/22/2010 50700 Kaiser Permanente 2,285.12
3/22/2010 50675 Cagwin & Dorward Inc. 2,209.00
3/22/2010 50701 Koffler Electrical Mech, Inc. 2,022.55
3/22/2010 50733 Verizon California 1,849.04
3/22/2010 50707 Marin Mechanical II, Inc. 1,565.00
3/22/2010 50670 Bowens, Kenneth 1,560.00
3/22/2010 50693 G & K Services 1,358.56
3/22/2010 50720 Pini Hardware 1,083.40
3/22/2010 50705 Long, William C. 1,070.95
3/22/2010 50719 Pacific, Gas & Electric 1,014.78
3/22/2010 50697 IEDA, INC 1,000.00
3/22/2010 50662 Alliant Insurance Services, Inc 979.00
3/22/2010 50668 Bartle Wells Assoc, Inc 934.65
3/22/2010 50676 Cantarutti Electric, Inc 880.00
3/22/2010 50738 Whitney, Larry 880.00
3/22/2010 50696 HSBC 635.74
3/22/2010 50706 Manco 508.08
3/22/2010 50739 Lincoln Financial Group 500.00
3/22/2010 50694 Grainger 447.52
3/22/2010 50665 Ashbrook Simon-Hartley Opera... 421.26
3/22/2010 50686 Donald L. Blayney & Associates 384.08
3/22/2010 50680 Cintas Corporation 369.12
3/22/2010 50702 Lab Safety Supply, Inc. 356.32
3/22/2010 50730 Van Bebber Brothers Inc. 295.39
3/22/2010 50735 WasteManagement 288.99
3/22/2010 50684 CWEAmembers 264.00
3/22/2010 50699 Jim-n-i Rentals 250.00
3/22/2010 50731 Verizon 237.23
3/22/2010 50732 Verizon Business 200.45
3/22/2010 50679 Central Marin Sanitation District 200.00
3/22/2010 50727 Southland Electrical Supply, Inc. 179.00
3/22/2010 50669 Black Box Network Services 159.81
3/22/2010 50714 Northgate Office Equip 159.63
3/22/2010 50674 Buck's Saw Service, Inc. 159.27
3/22/2010 50698 IOBP,LLC 117.00
3/22/2010 50710 North Bay Gas & Weld 108.00
3/22/2010 50691 Fluid Dynamics 105.00
3/22/2010 50690 Evergreen Oil, Inc. 90.00
3/22/2010 50711 North Bay Portables, Inc. 89.70
3/22/2010 50737 WEF Membership 85.00
3/22/2010 50664 American Water Works Associ... 82.00

Novato Sanitary District

03/19/10 Check Register
March 22, 2010

Page 1



Date Num Name Credit

3/22/2010 50712 North Marin Auto Parts 77.64
3/22/2010 50724 Royal Petroleum Company 74.12
3/22/2010 50671 Brand, Joel & Desha 70.00
3/22/2010 50678 CED Santa Rosa, Inc 67.70
3/22/2010 50666 Autoworld 66.62
3/22/2010 50681 Cook Paging 57.73
3/22/2010 50721 Quill Corporation 55.63
3/22/2010 50677 Carquest Auto Parts 45.65
3/22/2010 50715 Novato Brushless Car Wash 45.57
3/22/2010 50695 Home Depot 42.42
3/22/2010 50728 Staples Business Adv 35.15
3/22/2010 50718 One Stop Auto Service Inc. 31.08
3/22/2010 50685 Domain Registry of America 30.00
3/22/2010 50704 Lincoln Financial Group

Mar 22, 10 464,980.65

Novato Sanitary District

03/19/10 Check Register
March 22, 2010

Page 2





NOVATO SANITARY DISTRICT 
BOARD AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 
TITLE:   Election Contest MEETING DATE:  March 22, 2010 

 
AGENDA ITEM NO.:  

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  None, information only. 

SUMMARY AND DISCUSSION:   
 
On March 8, 2010, Judge Verna A. Adams, Marin County Superior Court, ruled in favor of Bill 
Long and the Novato Sanitary District and against plaintiffs Suzan Sharpley and Bob Abeling 
in this election contest matter and confirmed the results of the November 3, 2009 District 
election.  The Court ordered us to prepare a final order and judgment.  Meyers Nave did so 
and submitted these to the Court and to opposing counsel.  Copies of these documents are 
attached.  
 
When we get a signed judgment, we will prepare and file/serve a Notice of Entry of Judgment. 
The Notice of Entry of Judgment will conclude this case in the trial court and trigger plaintiff's 
time to file an appeal, if any.   
 
Estimated legal fees and costs to date, excluding expert fees     $ 71,147 
 Expert fees     $34,748 
 District staff    $12,000 
 Total:  $117,895 
 
 
 

ALTERNATIVES:  None. 

BUDGET INFORMATION:  This work will be funded from the budget for Attorney fees, which 
has a revised budget amount of $1,200,000. 

DEPT.MGR.: MANAGER: 

 



































































































































 Novato Sanitary District 
 
 SCHEDULE FOR APPROVAL OF 2010-11 PRELIMINARY AND 
 FINAL BUDGET, APPROPRIATIONS LIMIT, AND SEWER SERVICE CHARGES 
 
 
March 22, 2010 Regular Board Meeting: Approval of schedule for adoption of 

2010-11 Preliminary and Final Budget, Appropriations Limit, and 
Sewer Service Charges. 

 
April 26, 2010 Regular Board meeting:  Budget workshop.     
 
April/May Staff prepares proposed 2010-11 Preliminary Budget. 
 
May 10, 2010 Regular Board meeting.  Revenue Program review. 
 
May 24, 2010 Regular Board meeting. Determination of maximum rate increase 

if needed, authorization to prepare and publish a Proposition 218 
Notice, and scheduling of public hearing for July 26th. 

 
June 11, 2010 Deadline for publishing and mailing Proposition 218 Notice and 

Notice for Public Hearing on Collecting on County Tax Tolls, and 
Adoption of Sewer Service Charge Ordinance.  

 
June 14, 2010 Regular Board Meeting:  Initial presentation of 2010-11Preliminary 

Budget.   
 
June 28, 2010 Regular Board Meeting:  Board considers adoption of 2010-11 

Preliminary Budget. 
 
July 12, 2010 Publish second public hearing notice in the IJ. 
 
July 26, 2010 Regular meeting. Public Hearing on Rate Increase under 

Proposition 218. Public hearings on 2010-11 service charge rates, 
collection on County tax rolls, and adoption of sewer service 
charge ordinance. 

 
July 30, 2010 Publication of Sewer Service Charge Ordinance. 
 
July 31, 2010 State Department of Finance provides growth factors for 

calculation of the District's 2010-11 appropriations limit. 
 
August 10, 2010 Deadline for providing sewer service charge information to County 

of Marin. 
 
August 24, 2010 Regular Board Meeting:  Board establishes 2010-11 

appropriations limit, approves Final Budget, and adopts resolution 
fixing tax allocation for 2010-11. 



s:\board reports\2010\march\second half\district policies cover memo.doc 

NOVATO SANITARY DISTRICT 
BOARD AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 
TITLE:  Administration - District Policy 
Handbook 

MEETING DATE:  March 22, 2010 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO. :        

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Consider adoption of District Policies. 
 

SUMMARY AND DISCUSSION: 
 
The following proposed District policy is presented for Board consideration:   
 
 
# 5060 - Minutes of Board Meetings. 
  
 
   
 
 
 
  

ALTERNATIVES:   N/A 

BUDGET INFORMATION:  No budget impact. 

DEPT. MGR. : MANAGER’S APPROVAL: 

 



 

  5060 – 1 

NOVATO SANITARY DISTRICT 
POLICY HANDBOOK 

 
 
POLICY TITLE: Minutes of Board Meetings 
POLICY NUMBER: 5060 
 
 
5060.1 The Secretary of the Board of Directors shall keep minutes of all regular and special meetings of the 
 Board.   
 
 5060.1.1 Copies of a meeting’s minutes shall be distributed to Directors as part of the information 

packet of a regular meeting of the Board, at which time the Board will consider approving the minutes 
as presented or with modifications.  Once approved by the Board, the official minutes shall be kept in a 
secure location.  

 
 5060.1.2 If an audio tape recording of regular and special meetings of the Board of Directors is 

made, the device upon which the recording is stored shall be kept in a secure location for a minimum of 
30 days.  Audio recordings shall be available to members of the public if a request is made.  Such 
request shall be made with adequate prior notice and the District shall make a playback machine 
available upon such request.  

 
 5060.1.3 Motions, resolutions or ordinances shall be recorded in the minutes as having passed or 

failed, and individual votes will be recorded unless the action was unanimous.  All resolutions and 
ordinances adopted by the Board shall be numbered consecutively. In addition to other information that 
the Board may deem to be of importance, the following information (if relevant) shall be included in each 
meeting’s minutes: 

 
 Date, place and type of each meeting; 
 Directors present and absent by name; 
 Administrative staff present by name; 
 Call to order; 
 Time and name of late arriving Directors; 
 Time and name of early departing Directors; 
 Names of Directors absent during any agenda item upon which action was taken; 
 Summary record of staff reports; 
 Summary record of public comment regarding matters not on the agenda, including names of 

commentators; 
 Summary record of Board comments; 
 Approval of the minutes or modified minutes of preceding meetings; 
 Approval of financial reports; 
 Complete information as to each subject of the Board’s deliberation; 
 Record of the vote of each Director on every action item for which the vote was not unanimous; 



 

  5060 – 2 

 Resolutions and ordinances described as to their substantive content and sequential numbering; 
 Record of all contracts and agreements, and their amendment, approved by the Board; 
 Approval of the annual budget; 
 Approval of all polices, rules and/or regulations; 
 Approval of all dispositions of District assets; 
 Approval of all purchases of District assets; and, 
 Time of meeting’s adjournment. 
 
 For the section of the agenda devoted to Board and public comments, there is no legal requirement to 
 enter any written or verbal comment into the minutes on request, whether from the public or a Board 
 Member.  Therefore, as stated above, summary records only will be recorded into the minutes.  
 
 



NOVATO SANITARY DISTRICT 
BOARD AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 
TITLE:   Wastewater Operations 
Committee Report 

MEETING DATE:  March 22, 2010 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO.:  

RECOMMENDED ACTION:   

SUMMARY AND DISCUSSION:   
 
The Wastewater Operations Committee met on March 15, 2010 to review the operation of the 
Wastewater Treatment and Collection System Facilities. The attached report provides the 
Wastewater Operations and Maintenance Report for February 2010 and the Collection 
System summary for 2009. 
 
The next phase of the Wastewater Treatment Facility upgrade is scheduled to come online on 
April 12, 2010. This will require an increase in operations assistance to prepare Standard 
Operating Procedures, document training, and free staff to attend training.  

ALTERNATIVES:  None. 

BUDGET INFORMATION:   

DEPT.MGR.: MANAGER: 

 


















	agenda
	AGENDA

	Item 5 01-11-10_minutes
	Item 6a BMK Force
	Item 6c checks
	Item 8a memo electioncontest
	Item 9a
	Item 9bBUDSCH10-11
	9c Board Policy
	10b Wastewater report

